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November 3, 2003

-

Securities and Exchange Commission

o S s AR

Re: AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds 03040254 |

Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed please find a copy of a class action complaint filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York on October 23, 2003 by
Regina Kopelowitz against the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds listed in Appendix A
(the “Funds”) and the Funds’ affiliated parties listed in Appendix B. The Funds make
this filing pursuant to Section 33 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

PROCESSED
7 DEC 09 2013

HOMSON
E’INANCKAL

Sincerely,

Paul M. Miller

Enclosure

CC: Keith A. O’Connell
Domenick Pugliese




AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

APPENDIX A

Name Registration CIK No.
No.

AllianceBernstein Growth & Income Fund, Inc. 811-00126 0000029292
AllianceBernstein Health Care Fund, Inc. 811-09329 0001085421
AllianceBernstein Disciplined Value Fund, Inc. 811-09687 | 0001090504
AllianceBernstein Mid-Cap Growth Fund, Inc. 811-00204 0000019614
AllianceBernstein Real Estate Investment Fund, Inc. 811-07707 0001018368
The AllianceBernstein Portfolios 811-05088 | 0000812015
- AllianceBernstein Growth Fund
AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series, Inc. 811-09176 0001062417
- Biotechnology Portfolio
- Technology Portfolio
- Premier Portfolio
AllianceBernsteinTrust 811-10221 0001129870
- AllianceBernstein Small Cap Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Value Fund
- AllianceBemstein Global Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein International Value Fund
AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-06730 0000889508
AllianceBernstein Quasar Fund, Inc. 811-01716 | 0000081443
AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, Inc. 811-03131 0000350181
AllianceBernstein Utility Income Fund, Inc. 811-07916 | 0000910036
AllianceBernstein Balanced Shares, Inc. 811-00134 0000069752
AllianceBernstein Blended Style Series, Inc. 811-21081 0001172221
- U.S. Large Cap Portfolio
AllianceBernstein All Asia Investment Fund, Inc. 811-08776 0000930438
AllianceBernstein Greater China '97 Fund, Inc. 811-08201 0001038457
AllianceBernstein International Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-08527 0001050658
AllianceBernstein Global Small Cap Fund, Inc. 811-01415 | 0000095669
AllianceBernstein New Europe Fund, Inc. 811-06028 0000859605
AllianceBernstein Worldwide Privatization Fund, Inc. 811-08426 0000920701
AllianceBernstein Americas Government Income Trust, Inc. 811-06554 0000883676
AllianceBemstein Bond Fund, Inc. 811-02383 0000003794
- Corporate Bond Portfolio
- Quality Bond Portfolio
- U.S. Government Portfolio
AllianceBernstein Emerging Market Debt Fund, Inc. 811-08188 | 0000915845
AllianceBernstein Global Strategic Income Trust, Inc. 811-07391 | 0001002718
AllianceBernstein High Yield Fund, Inc. 811-09160 | 0001029843
AllianceBernstein Multi-Market Strategy Fund, Inc. 811-06251 0000873067




Sanford C. Bernstein Fund, Inc.

- Short Duration Portfolio

- Intermediate California Municipal Portfolio

- Intermediate Diversified Municipal Portfolio
- Intermediate New York Municipal Portfolio

811-05555

0000832808

AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund, Inc.
- National Porfolio

California Portfolio

Insured California Portfolio

Insured National Portfolio

- New York Portfolio

811-04791

0000798737

AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund II
- Arizona Portfolio

- Florida Portfolio

- Massachusetts Portfolio

- Michigan Portfolio

- Minnesota Portfolio

- New Jersey Portfolio

- Ohio Portfolio

- Pennsylvania Portfolio

- Virginia Portfolio

811-07618

0000899774




APPENDIX B

Affiliated Parties of AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

Name - CIK No. Registration | TARD No.
No.
Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P. 0000825313 | 001-09818 | 106998
801-32361
Alliance Capital Management Corporation N/A 801-39910 | 107445
Alliance Capital Management L.P. N/A 801-56720 | 108477
AXA Financial, Inc. 0000880002 | 001-11166 | N/A
Gerald Malone, Senior Vice President of N/A N/A N/A

Alliance Capital Management L.P. and Portfolio
Manager

00250.0073 #439144




BULL & LIFSHITZ, LLP

Peter D. Bull (PB-9118)

Joshua M. Lifshitz (JL-9172) | -

18 East 41st Street ‘ ' ‘ ﬂ

New York, NY 10017 ' by Q §ﬁ .g
Tel: (212) 213-6222 o wE 8 3 ?2

Attorneys for Plaintiff

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

)
REGINA KOPELOWITZ, On Behalf of Herself And ) CIVIL ACTION NO.
All Others Sxmllarly Situated, ) ~3
, , ) CLASS ACTION COMPLAI@T
Plaintiff, ) FOR VIOLATIONS OF ﬂmn
. : ) FEDERAL SECURITIEs‘Cr:Aws
V. -,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH & INCOME =
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HEALTH CARE
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN DISCIPLINED
VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MID-CAP
GROWTH FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL
ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VALUE
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN PREMIER
GROWTH FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT
INVESTOR SERIES TECHNOLOGY PORT,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN VALUE FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN QUASAR FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN TECHNOLOGY FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES PREMIER PORT, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN .
UTILITY INCOME FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
BALANCED SHARES, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
DISCIPLINED VALUE FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL VALUE FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL VALUE
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
SMALL CAP VALUE FUND, :
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- FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY INCOME
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN VALUE FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN ALLASIA
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BLENDED STYLE
SERIES - U.S. LARGE CAP PORTFOLIO,
INVESTMENT FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTE]N
GLOBAL VALUE FUND, :
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GREATER CHINA 97

INTERNATIONAL PREMIER GROWTH FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL
VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GLOBAL SMALL CAP FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN NEW EUROPE FUND,
ALLTANCEBERNSTEIN WORLDWIDE
PRIVATIZATION FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT IN'VESTOR '
SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORT,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR.
SERIES PREMIER PORT, -
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES TECHNOLOGY PORT,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN AMERICAS
GOVERNMENT INCOME TRUST,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
CORPORATE BOND PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
QUALITY BOND PORTFOLIO, . o
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND U.S. -
GOVERNMENT PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN EMERGING MARKET
DEBT FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL
STRATEGIC INCOME TRUST, :
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HIGH YIELD FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MULTI-MARKET
STRATEGY TRUST, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
SHORT DURATION, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE CALIFORNIA MUNI
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE DIVERSIFIED MUNI
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE NEW YORK MUNI
PORTFOLIO,

[Caption continues below]




ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
NATIONAL PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
ARIZONA PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
INSURED CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO,
ALLTANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
INSURED NATIONAL PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
FLORIDA PORTFOLIO, -

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND ‘

MASSACHUSETTS PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
MICHIGAN PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
MINNESOTA PORTFOLIO, .
ALLJANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
NEW JERSEY PORTFOLIO, ‘
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
NEW YORK PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNJ INCOME FUND
OHIO PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
MUNI INCOME FUND PENNSYLVANIA
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI
INCOME FUND VIRGINIA PORTFOLIO,
COLLEGEBOUNDFUNDSM (collectively known
as “ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN FUNDS");
ALLJANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH & INCOME
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HEALTH
CARE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
DISCIPLINED VALUE FUND, INC,,
ALLJANCEBERNSTEIN MID-CAP GROWTH
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL
ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND, INC., _
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VALUE
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN PREMIER
GROWTH FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
SELECT INVESTOR SERIES TECHNOLOGY
PORT, INC,, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN VALUE
FUND, INC.,

'vv\./v\./v\./\.«\./\./V\_/vvvvvvvvvvvvvvv\.}v\vavvvvvvvvvvvvv
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ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN QUASAR FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN TECHNOLOGY FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT
INVESTOR SERIES PREMIER PORT, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY INCOME
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
BALANCED SHARES, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN DISCIPLINED VALUE
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERNATIONAL VALUE FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VALUE
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY
INCOME FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
BLENDED STYLE SERIES - U.S. LARGE CAP
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
ALL-ASIA INVESTMENT FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL VALUE
- FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GREATER CHINA '97 FUND, INC,, :
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL
PREMIER GROWTH FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GLOBAL SMALL CAP FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN NEW EUROPE FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN WORLDWIDE
PRIVATIZATION FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORT, INC., v
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES PREMIER PORT, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
- SERIES TECHNOLOGY PORT, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN AMERICAS
GOVERNMENT INCOME TRUST, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
CORPORATE BOND PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
QUALITY BOND PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND U.S.
GOVERNMENT PORTFOLIO, INC,,
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ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN EMERGING MARKET
DEBT FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GLOBAL STRATEGIC INCOME TRUST, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HIGH YIELD FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MULTIMARKET
STRATEGY TRUST, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SHORT DURATION
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERMEDIATE
CALIF ORNIA MUNI PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERMEDIATE
DIVERSIFIED MUNI PORTFOLIO, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERMEDIATE NEW
YORK MUNI PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
NATIONAL PORTFOLIO, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
ARIZONA PORTFOLIO, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO, INC., ‘
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
. INSURED CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
INSURED NATIONAL PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
FLORIDA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
MASSACHUSETTS PORTFOLIO, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
MICHIGAN PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
MINNESOTA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
NEW JERSEY PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
NEW YORK PORTFOLIO, INC,, '
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
OHIO PORTFOLIO, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
PENNSYLVANIA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND

VIRGINIA PORTFOLIO, INC. (collectively known

as “ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REGISTRANTS"),
'ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
HOLDING L.P.; ALLIANCE CAPITAL
MANAGEMENTLP.;

. . . N

[Caption Continues Below]




ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION; AXA FINANCIAL, INC;
‘GERALD MALONE; CHARLES SCHAFFRAN;
EDWARD J. STERN; CANARY CAPITAL
PARTNERS, LLC; CANARY INVESTMENT .
MANAGEMENT, LLC; CANARY CAPITAL
PARTNERS, LTD.; and JOHN DOES 1-100,

» Defendants.

N Nt N N Nt N N N S’ S

Plaintiff alleges the foliowing bésed ﬁpon the investigation‘ of plaintiff’s couns'ei, which
included a review of United States Securities and Exchange Commissioh (“SEC”) filings as well
as other regulatory filings and reports and advisories about tﬁe AllianceBernstein Funds (as
defined in the gapﬁdn of this case, abové), press releases,‘a;id ¥nediav reports about the
AllianceBemstein Funds. Pla.iﬁtiff believes that suEstanﬁai additional evidentiary support will
exist for the aI]egaﬁons set forth hergin af_ter a reasonable opportunity for discovery. |

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is a federal class action on behalf of a class consisﬁng of all persons other
than defendaxits who purchased or otherwise accjuired éhafes or other ownership units of one or
more of the mutual funds in the AllianceBernstein family of funds (i.e., vthe Al]ianceB_emstein
Funds as defined in the caption, anve) between Qctober‘z, 1998 and Seﬁtember 29, 2003,
inclusive, and who were damaged thereby (the “Class”). Plaintiff seeks to puréue remédies under
“t'he Securities Act of 1933 ,(the “‘S‘ecurities Act”), the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act™) avnd‘ the Investment Advisers Act §f 1940 (the “lnvestnent‘Advisers Act”).

2. This ‘ac‘cidn charges defendants wiih chgaging in an unlawful and deceitful course
of conduct designed to improperiy ﬁnanciallsv advantage defendants 1o the detﬁmeht of plaintiff

and the other members of the Class. As part aﬁd parcel of defendants’ unlawful conduct, the




Fund Defendants, as defined below, in clear cbntraventi_gn of their fiduciary resbonsibilities, and
disclosure obligations, failed torproperly disclose;

()  That select favored customers were allowed to engage in illegal “late )
ﬁ'ading,” a praﬁtice, more fully described hérein, whereby an investor may plac‘e an order to
purchase ﬁmd shares after 4:00 p.m. and_have that order filled at that day’s closing net asset
:value; and | '

') 'That select favoi'ed customers were improperly allowed to “time” their
mutual fund ‘tradesv. Such timing, as more fully described herein, improperly allows an investor
to trade in and out of a mutual fund to exploit short-term moves and inefﬁt;iencies in the manner

" in which thé mutual funds price their sharés.
| 3 On September 30, 2003, beforé the market opened, Alliance Cépital Management,
L.P. isSuéd a press release mvéaling that it had Been contacted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the New York State Attorney General’s Office in connection with the
regulators’ investjga_.tion of the mutual fund industry’s practices of late trading and mark,ef
timing. Alliance Capitgl Management announcéd that as a resﬁ]t of its own internal
investigation, it had identified ct;_nﬂjcts of interests with respect to market timing transactions,
.leading to the suSpenéion of defendant Gerald Malone, a portfolio manager of certain

' Alliam:eBernstein Fv._inds and defendant Charles Schaffran, an exécutive salesperson of Alliance

hedge funds. | |

4, Subsequently, on Qctobér 1, 2003, The Wall Street Journal reported that
- defendants Malone and Schaffran allowed certain investors to make fapid trades in 3

AllianceBemnstein Funds that were managed by Malone, in exchange for largé investments in




certain Alliance hedge funds also managed by Malone. Moreov;:r, :;Lhe article stated that
according to docurﬁents produced by Alliancé Capital Management pursuant to a subpoena by -
the Attorney General’s Office, defendant Edward Stem placed late trades through Bank of
America for certain AllianceBemnstein Funds. Bank of America has been named as a defendant
in numerous fecéntly filed écﬁons concerning its alleged participation in a wrongful and illegal
scheme which allowed the Cané:y Defendants, defined herein, to engage in late trading and
market timing in mutual fund families, including Jéﬁus, One Group, Strong and Nations funds.
As a result of defendants’ wrongful an.d illegal misconduct in AllianceBernstein Funds, plaintiff
and mémbers t_)f the Class suffered damage;.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This Court has jurisdiction over the éubject mattef of this action pursuant to § 27
of the Exchange Act of 1934 (1 5 U.S.C. § 78aa); Section 22 of the Securities Act (15U.S.C.
§ 77v); Section 80b-14 of the Investment Advisers Act (15 U.S.C.§ 80b-14); and 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1331, 1337. |

6. Many of the acts charged herein, iﬁcluding the preparation and dissemination of
materially false andv misleading infonnﬁtion, occur;ed in substantial part in this District.
‘Defendémts condueted other substantial business within this District and many Class membefs
- reside within this District. Deferidanfs Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P., .Alli.ance
- Capital Management LP, Alliéncé Capital Managemént Corporation, and AXA Financial, Inc.
maintain of.ﬁlc':cs in this Dis'trict. |

7. In connection with the acts allcgcd in this complaint, defendants, directly or

~ indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including, but not 4




limited to, the mails, interstate telephone communications and the facilities of the national

securities markets.

PARTIES
8. Plaintiff Regina Kopelowitz, as set forth in her cértiﬁcation, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein, purchased units of thé AllianceBernstein Select
Investor Series Inc Premier Portfolio Fund dﬁring the Class Period and has been dgmaged '
thereby. | |
9. Each of tﬁe Alllianc.eBtv:msteir‘l‘Fun“ds, including the AllianceBernstein Select
Investor Series Inc Premier Portfolio Fund , are ﬁuml funds that are regulated by the Investment
Company Act of 1940, that are’ nianaged by defendant Alliance Capital Management L.P., and
that buy, hold, and sell shares or other owne%ship units that are subject to the misconduct alleged
in this complaint. , | |
10. = Defendant Alliance Capital Mapagement Hdlding L.P. (“Alliance Holding”) is a
| publicly-traded holding company which provides investment management services through
defendant Alliance Capital Management L.P. (“Alliance Capit?.l Managernent”). Alliance
Holding is incorporated in Delaware with its pﬁncipél place of business located at 1345 Aveﬁue
of the Americas, New York, New Yprk 10105. Al l‘i'ance Holding is the ultimate parent of the
AllianceBemstein Funds and the pareﬁt compahy of, ﬁndv controls Alliance Capital Management
and the AllianceBernstein Registrants. As of March 31, 2003, Alliance Holding owned
| approximately 30.7 percent of the outstanding shéres of Alliance Capital Management.
- 11, Defendant Alliance Capitél Management is registered as an investment adviser

under the Investment Advisers Act and managed and advised the AllianceBernstein Funds

4




throughout the Class Period. During this peridd,‘Alliapgf: Capital Management had ultimate
reﬁpoﬁsibility fér overseéing the day-to-day managexﬁent of the AllianceBemstein Funds.
Alliance Capital Management is located at 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York |
10105. |

12, Defendant Alliance Capital M;nagement Corporation (“A]liance. Corporation”) is
a whdlly-owhed subsidiary of defendant AXA Financial, Inc. (;‘A){.A’; X and the general partner‘
of defendants Alliance Holding and AllianceVCapita‘l‘Management. Alliance Corporation owns
1.00,000 partnership units in Aliiance Holding, and a 1 percent general paﬁnershi;ﬁ 'mfterest in
. Alliance Capital Manégemcnt Alliance Corporation is located at 140 Broadway, New York,
New >York 10005. |

13.  Defendant AXA, a uﬁit of Europe’s second llz;\rgest insurer AXA SA, is an
international ﬁnancjal sérvices érganizations which pfoQidcs financial advisory, insurance and
inv‘vestment management products and serviceS worldwide. AXA is a Delaware corporation and
maintains its principal place of business at 1290 Avenue of the Americas, New Yo.rk_, New York
10104. AXA controls Alliance Capital Managemént by virtue of its'general partnership interests
thréugh Alliance Corporation and its 55.7 pércent economic interest_ in Alliance Capital
Mﬁnagex_nent as of March 31, 2003. |

| 14.  Defendants AllianceBernstein Registrants Are the regiétrants and issuers of the

shﬁres of the ‘AlIianceBemvstein Funds, and were active participants in the unlawful scheme
'alleged herein.

15. Defendant Gerald Mglone was at all relevant times a Senior Vicé President at

Alliance Capital Ma.nagement'and a portfolio manager of several AllianceBernstein Funds,

5




including the AllianceBernstein Technology Fuﬁd, and Alliance hedge funds, and was an acﬁve
participant in the unlawful scheme alleged herein.

16; Defendant Charles Schaffran was at all relevant times a marketing executive ét
Alliance Capital Management who sold Alliance hedge funds to investors, and was an active
participant in the unlawful schcmé alleged herein. _

17.  Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporatioﬁ; Alliance Capital Management, AXA, the
AlliénceBemstein Registrants, and the AllianceBernstein Fuﬁds are referred to collecti-vely heréip _
as the “Fund Defendants.”

18.  Defendant Canary Capital Partners, LLC, isa NewJ ersey limited liability
company with offices at 400 Plaza Drive, Secaucus, New Jersey. Canary Capital Partners, LLC,
was an active participant in the unlawful scheme alleged herein. |

19.  Defendant Canary Investmenf Management, LLC, is a Néw Jei‘sey limited liabiliiy
company, ﬁth ofﬁcés af 400 Plaza Drive, Secaucus, New Jerééy. Canad Invcstmeqt
Management, LLC, was an active particij:ant in the unlawful scheme alleged herein.

20. Defendéﬁt Canary Capital Partners; Ltd., is a Bermuda limited liability company.
- Canary Capital Partners, Ltd., was an_active‘ participant in the unlawful scheme alleged herein.

21. | Defendan’g Edward FJ . Sterﬁ (“Stern™) is a resident of New York, New York. Stern
was the managing princibal of Canary Capital Partners, LLC, Canary Investment Management,
LLC, and.Canary Capital Partners, Ltd. and was an active participant in the unjawful scheﬁe

alleged herein.




22.  Defendants Canary Capital Partners, LLC; Canary Cépital Partners, Ltd.; Canary
Investment Management, LLC;‘and Stern are collectively feferred to herein as the “Canary
Defendants.”

| 23.  The true names and capacities of defendants sued herein as John_ Does 1 through
100 are other active participants with the Fund defendauts in the widespread unlawful conduct
a]léged herein whose identities have yet to be ‘as‘qerta.ined. Included amongst the John Doe
défenda.nts are certain Alliance hedge funds that have been referenced in news articies in
connection with the misconduct alleged herein and ﬁave yetto be ideptiﬁed. Such defenda.nts
- were sec‘:retly permifted to engage in improper late trading and timing at the expense of ordinary
AllianceBernstein Funds investors, such as plaintiff aﬁd the other members of thé C‘lass, in
exchange for which these J o]_,'ui Doe defendants provided remuneration to the Fund Defendants.
Plaintiff will seek to amend this complaint to state the true names and capacities of said
defeﬁdmts when they have been aﬁcertained. |

PLAIINTIFF'S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS |

24, Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pufsuant to‘ Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, cons_isting of all persons or entities who |
purchased ér otherwise acquired shares of the All-Asia Investment Fund and AllianceBernstein
Technology Fund, or like interests in AllianceBernstein Funds, betWeen October 2, 1998 and
September 29, 2003, inclusive, and who Were damaged theréby. Plaintiff and each of the Class
members purchased shares or other ownership units in Allianc;eBernstein Funds pursuant to a
registration statement énd prospectus. The registration staternents and prospecttxseé pursuant to

which plaintiff'and the other Class members purchased their shafes_ or other ownership units in

7




the AllianceBemsféin Funds, including the All-Asia Investment Fund and_ﬂie AllianceBemstein
Technology Fund, are referred to collectively herein as the “Prospectuseé.” Excluded fro;r; the
Class are defendants, members of their immediate families and tﬁeir legal representatives, heirs,
Successors or as‘signs and any entity in which defendants ﬁave or héd a controlling inte’rest.

25.  The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to plaintiff at this tirﬁe
and can only be éscenaiped Throﬁgh appropriate discovery, plaintiff believes that there are
thousands of members in the p'ropo:sed Class. Record owners and .other members of the ‘Class‘
may be identified from records rﬁaintéined ‘py the AllianceBem;tein Fﬁnds and may be notified
of the pendency of this action by mail, using the form of noticA:e‘ similar to that customarily uscd
~ in securities éiass a.cﬁons.

26.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the ;:laims of the members of the Class as all
members of the Class are similaﬂy affected by defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of |
federal law that is complained of herein. |
27.  Plaintiff will fairly and adeéuatély protect the interests of the members of the
Class and ha ve retained counsel competent é.nd experienced in class and securiﬁes -_liti gation,
28.. » Common questions of law and fact exist as to,é]l merﬁbers of the Class and
predominate éve; any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among the _
questions of law and fact commoh to the Class are:
| (a) 4whether‘ the federal securities laws were violated by defendants’ acts asr

alleged herein;




(b) wheiher statements 'made'by defépdants to the investiﬁg public during the
Class Petiod misrepresgnted materia,l facts about the business, 0pérations and financial
statements of the Allianceremstein Funds; and
©) io what extent the members of the Class have sustained damagés and the |
proper measure of damages. | |
29. Aclass .acﬁon is superior to all othér available methods for the fair and efficient
édjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is imﬁracticable. Furthermore, as
the damageﬁ suﬁ”e;ed by individual Clasg‘members may be felatively small, the expense and
burden of individual litigation maké it virtually impossible for members of the Class_ to |
indivi;iually redress the wrongé done to them. - There will be no difficulty in the manégement of
this action as a class action. , |
SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS
Introduction: The Double Standard for Privileged Investors
30~ Mutual funds are meant to be long-term investments and are therefo;e the favored
 savings vehicles for many Americans’ retirement and vcollege funds. The AllianéeBernstein
Funds Qere no ekception; the AllianceBernstein Funds’ website states: “A little planning goes a
long way. Whatever your long-term goal, we can help you begin to p‘lan a sa\.zings strategy.. 1f
your goal is listed below, let us show you how. I want to invest fof a comfortable retirement. -
I’m saving for a collegc‘ education. I’in saving toward a dream purchase.’; :
31. However, unbeknownst to ini}estors, from at least as early as October 2, 1998 and
until Septerber 29, ZOOS, inclusive, defendants engaged in fraudulent and wrongful schemes that

~ enabled certain favored investors to reap rxiany millions of dollars in profit, at the expense of the




AllianceBemetein Funds’ investors, including plaintiff and other members of the Class, through
secret and illegnl after-hours trading and timed. trading. In exchange for allowing and facilitating
| this impropervconduet, the Fu.nd Defendants received substantial fees and other remuneration for
themselves and their affiliates to the detriment of plaintiff a.ndvthe other menlbers of the Class
who knew nothing of these illicit anangementé. Specifically, Alliance Capital Mnnagement, as
manager of the AllianceBermnstein Furlds and each of the relevant fund managers, profited from
fees Alliance Capltal Management charged to the AlhanceBemstem Funds that were measured as
~a percentage of the fees under management. In exchange for the right to engage in illegal late
trading and ﬁming, which hurt plaintiff and other Class members, by artificially and material]y
affeeting the value of the Allié.ncéBernstein Funds, the Canary Defendants, and the John Doe
Defendants, agreed to park substantial assets in the Funds, thereby increasing the assets under
AlllanceBemstem Funds managemem and the fees paid to AllianceBernstein Funds® managers.
The assets parked in the Alha.nceBemstem Funds in exchange for the right to engage in late
trading and timing ha_Ve been refel'red to as “sticky assets.” Furthe;more, the Canary Defendante
secretly disguised additional, improper compensntion to the F-und Defendants as int.‘ercst
payments on mc;nies loaned by the FundDefendantsvto ‘the Canary Defendants for the purpose of
financing the illegal scheme. The synergy between the Fund Defendants and the Canary -
| Defendants hinged on ordinary investors’ misplaeecl_tmst ‘in the integrity of mutual fund
companies and allowed defendants to profit handsqmely Vat the expense of plaintiff and other

members of the Class.

Illegal Late Trading at the Expense of Plaintiff and Other Members of the Class
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32.  “Late trading” exploits the unique way in which mutual funds, including the
AllianceBernstein Funds, set their prices. The daily price of mutual fund shares is generally
calculated once a day as of 4:00 p.m. EST.. The pric.e,‘known as tho “Net Asset Value” or
“NAV,” generally reflects tﬁe closing prices of the securities that comp rise a given fund’s
portfolio, olus the value of any cash that the fund manager maintains for the fund. Orders to
~ buy, 11 sell or exchange momal fund shares placed at or before 4:00 p.m. EST on a given day

receive that day’s price. Orders placéd after 4:00 p.m. EST are supposed to Be filled using the
following day’s price. Unoeknownst to plaintiff and other members of the Class, and in
-violatiori of SEC regulations, tho Canary Defendants, and the John Doe Defendonts, secretly .
agreed with the Fund Defenda‘nts> that orders they. placedv after 4:00 p-m. on a given day would
illlegally receive that day’s price (as opposed to the next day’s price, which the order would have
received had it becp processed lawfully). This illegal conduct allowed the Canary Defendants,
and the John Doe Defendants, to capitalize on market- moving financial and other information
that was made public after the close of trading at 4:00 p.m. while plaintiff and other memAbers of
the Class, who bought their AlﬁaoceBomstcin Funds shares lawfully, could not. |
33.  Here is an illustration of how the favored treatment accorded to the Canary
Defendants took money, dollar- for;dollar, out of the pockets of ordinary A]lionceBemstein
Funds investors, soch as plaintiff and the other members of the Class: A mutual fund’s share
price is detennioed to be $10'per share for a given day. After 4:00 p.m., good news conceming
the fund’s constituent secm’itios may have been ﬁade pubiic, causiné the price of the fund’s
undeﬂying securities to rise materially and, correSpondingly, causing the next day’s NAV to rise

and increasing the fund share price to $15. Under this example, ordinary investors placing an
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order to buy after 4:00 p.m. on the day the news came out would have their orders filled at $15,
the next day’s price. Defendants’ scheme allowed the Canary Defendants, and other favored
investors named herein, to purchase fund sharés at the pre-4:00 p.m. price of $10 per share even
after the post-4:00 p.m. news came out and the market had already started to move upwardé.
These favored investors were therefore guaranteed a $5 per sharc‘ profit by buying after the
mafket had closed at the Iqwer price, available only to them, and then selling the §hmes the next
day at the higher price. Because all shares éold by investors are bought by the respective fund,
12 which musi sell shares or use available cash for the puréhase, Canary’s proﬁt of $5 per unit
comes, dollar- for dollar, directly from the other fund inveétors. This harmful practice, wlﬁch
damaged plaintiff and dther members Qf fhe Class, is completely undisclosed in the Prospecnwes
by which the AllianceBernstein Funds were marketed and sold and pursuant to which plaintiff
and the other Class members purchased their AlliarlceBcrnstéin Funds securities. Moreover, late
trading is séeciﬁcaﬂy prohibited by the “forward pricing rule “ embodied in SEC regulations.

See 17 C.F.R. § 270.22¢-1(a).

Secret Timed Trading at the Exp'ense of Plainfiff and Other Members of the Class
34, ‘.“Timing” is an arbitrage strategy involving short-term trading that can be used to
profit from mutual funds’ use of “stale” pﬁces to calculate the value of securities held in the
funds’ portfolio. These ﬁﬁc_:es ﬁe “stale” because they do not necessariI}"‘ reflect the “fair value”
of such sécurities_.as of the time the NAV is calculated. A typical example isa U;S. mutual fund
that holds Japanese securities. | Because of the time zone difference, the Japanese market may
close at 2 a.m. New York time. If the U.S. mutual fund manager uses t_h_e closing prices of the

Japanese securities in his or her fund to arrive at an NAV at 4 p.m. in New York, he or she is
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relying on market information that is fourteen hours old., [fﬂ%e?e h‘a. ve beeﬁ positive market

moves during the Néw Yofk uadiﬂg day that :wi_ll cause the Japanese market to rise when it later

| opens, the stale Japanese pﬁces will not reflect that increase, and the fund’s NAV will be
artificially low. = Put another way, the NAV wpuld not reflect the true current market value of the
stocks the ‘fund holds. This and similar strategies are known as “time zone arbitrage.”

35.  Asimilar typé of tifni.ng is possible in niutual funds that cbntajn illiquici securities
sqch as high-yield bonds or small capitalization stocks. Here, the‘fact that some of the
AllianceBernstein Funds’ underlying securities rﬁay not have traded for hours before the New
York closing time can fender. the fund’s NAV‘ stale gnd thus be susceptiBIe to being timed. ’fhis
is sometimes known as ‘fliquidity arbitrage.”

36.  Like late trading, effective timing captures an arbitrage profit. And like late -
trading, arbitrage profit from ﬁming comes dollar- for-dollar out of the pockets of the long-term
investors: the timer stebs in at the last moment and takesb'part of ‘the‘ buy-and-hold investors’
upside when the market goes up, so thé next day’s NAY is reduced f§ r those who are still in the
fund If the timer sells short on bad days -- as Canary also did - the arbitrage has the effect of
makjng the next day’s NAV lower than it would otherwise have been, thus fnagnifying the losses

 that investors are experiencing in a declining market. |
- 37.  Besides the~ \z}ealﬂl transfer of arbitrage (called “dilution”), time‘rs'al_so harm their |
target funds in a number of other ways. - They impose their. transaction costs on the long-term
investors. Trades necessitated by timer redernptioﬁs can also result in the realization of taxable
" capital gains at an undesirable ﬁme, or may result in managers having to sell stock into a faliing

market.
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38.  Itis widely acknowledged that timing inures to the detriment of longfterrn mutual
fund investors and, because of this detrimental effect, the Prospectuses stated that timing is
monitored and that the Fund Defendants work to prevent it. - These statements were materially
false and misleading because; not only did the Fund Defendants allow the Canary and John Doe -
Defendants to time their trades, but, in the case of the Canary Defendants, they also provided a
trading platform, provided the Canary Defendanfs proprietary information about the stocks held
in the AllianceBernstein F_unds, financed the timing arbitrage strategy and sought to profit and

did profit from it.
Defendants’ Fraudulent Scheme

39. . On September 3, 2003, New York Attomey General Eliot Spitzer filed a
complaint charging fraud, ﬁInongst other violations of law, in connection with the unlawful
practices alleged herein and exposing the fraudulent and ma.nipulatife practices charged here
with the particularity that had resulted from a confidential full- scale ihvesiigation (the “Spitzer
Cdmplain ™). The Spitzer Complaint alleged, with regard to the misconduct alleged herein, as
follows:

Canary engaged in late trading on a daily basis from in or about
March 2000 until this office began its investigation in July of 2003.
It targeted dozens of mutual funds and extracted tens of millions of
dollars from them. During the declining market of 2001 and 2002,
it used late trading to, in effect, sell mutual fund shares short. This
caused the mutual funds to overpay for their shares as the market
went down, serving to magnify long-term investors’ losses. [...]
[Bank of America] (1) set Canary up with a state-of-the-art v
electronic trading platform {. . .} (2) gave Canary permission to
time its own mutua] fund family, the “Nations Funds”, (3) provided

Canary with approximately $300 million of credit to finance this
late trading and timing, and (4) sold Canary derivative short
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positions it needed to time the funds as the market dropped. In the
process, Canary became one of Bank of America’s largest
customers. The relationship was mutually beneficial; Canary
made tens of millions through late trading and timing, while the
various parts of the Bank of America that serviced Canary made
millions themselves. :

40. Accordmg to mutual fund orders and other records obtained by the Attorney
- General’s Office, the Canary Defendants used an AlhanceBemstem Fund for its Jate tradmg and
market nmmg practices. Accordmg to the records, Canary sold shares of Alliance Growth &
Income Fund and mvestcd the proceeds in an Alliance money market fund in a late trade
submitted at 6:31 p.m. on January 13, 2003
41, On Scptember 4, 2003, The Wall Street Journal bpublished a front page story about

the Spitzer Complaint under the headline: “Spitzer Kicks Off Fund Probe With a $40 Million
Settlement;” in which the New York Attorney General compared after-the-close trading to “being
allowed to bet on a horse race after the race was over,” and which indicated that the fraudulent
practices enumerated in the Spitzer Complaint were just the tip of the iceberg. In this regard, the
article stated: |

[...]“The late tradcr,”- he said, “is being allowed intb the fund

~ after it has closed for the day to participate in a profit that would

otherwise have gone completely to the fund’s buy-and- hold

investors.” ‘ '

Ina staterﬁerit, Mr. Spitzer said “the full extent of this complicated

fraud is not yet known,” but he asserted that “the mutual-fund

industry operates on a double standard” in which certain traders

“have been given the opportunity to manipulate the system. They

make illegal after-hours trades and improperly exploit market

- swings in ways that harm ordinary long-term investors.”

For such long-term investors, rapid trading in and out of funds
raises trading costs and lowers returns; one study published last
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year estimated that such sﬁ'ategiés cost long-term investors $5
billion a year. ' ‘

The practice of placing late trades, which Mr Stem was accused of
at Bank of America, also hurts long-term shareholders because it
dilutes their gains, allowing latecomers to take advantage of events
after the markets closed that were likely to raise or lower the funds’
share price. [Emphasis added.] :

42,  The Wall Street Journal reported that the Canary Defendants had settled the
charges againﬁ them, agreeing to pay a $10 million fine and $30 million in restitution. On
September 5, 2003, The Wall Sﬁeet Journal reported that the New York Attorney Genefal’s'
Office had subpbenﬁed “a large number of hedge funds” and muﬁal fund$ as part of its
investigation, “underscoring concern among investors that the improper trading of mutual- ﬁmd
sha;es could be widespread” and that the SEC, joining the investigatibn, plans to send letters to
mutual funds holding abéut 75% of assets ﬁnder ﬁlanagement in the U.S. to inquire about. their
practices Wi!h respect fo market-timing and fund-trading practices.

43. | On Septéixlber 5, 2003, the trade publication, Morningstar reported: “Already this
is the biggest scandal o hit the industry, and‘it may‘ gfow. Spitzer says more companies will be
accused in the coming weeks. Thus, investors; and fund-company executives alike are looking
at some uneasy times‘.” |

44.  On September 30, 2003, Alliance Capital Management announced in a press
release published overvPR Newswire that the New iork State Attorney General and the SEC had'
contacted Alliaﬁce Capital Management in connection with the regulators’ investigation of

market timing and late trading practices in the mutual fund indusuy‘. Additionally, Alliance '

Capital Management revealed the following:
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"based on the preliminary results of its owri ongoing internal
investigation concerning mutual fund transactions, it has identified
conflicts of interest in connection with certain market timing -
transactions. In this regard, Alliance Capital has suspended two of
its employees, one of whom is a portfolio manager of the

'AllianceBemnstein Technology Fund, and the other of whom is an
executive involved with selling Alliance Capital hedge fund
products,

45.  On October 1, 2003, an article appea.ring in The Wall Street Journal identified the
. two Alliance Capital Management. employees who were suspended as a result of their
involvement in conflicts of interests as defendants Gerald Malone and Charles Schaffran. The
article revegled that Alliance Capital Management had been subpoenaed by the New York State
Attorney General’s Ofﬁce early on in its inquiry into the mutual fund industry, an& further,
elaborated on defendants Malone and thafﬁan’s wrongful and illegal misconduct:

. certain investors were allowed to make rapid trades in a mutual
fund managed by Mr. Malone in exchange for making large
investments in Alliance hedge funds also run by Mr. Malone[.]

* k¥

Mr. Schaffran is alleged to have helped a broker at a Las Vegas
firm called Security Brokerage Inc. gain the ability to make short-
term trades in shares of Mr. Malone’s mutual fund in exchange for
investments into Mr. Malone’s hedge funds[.] - ’

® ok ¥

As previously reported, [defendant Edward] Stern’s firm, Canary,
appears to had arrangements allowing short-term trading with
Alliance funds. . . Meanwhile, according to a copy of trade orders
obtained by [Attorney General Elliot] Spitzer’s office, on the
evening of Jan. 13 this year, Mr. Stern placed late trades through
Bank of America’s trading system to sell 4,178,074 shares of
Alliance Growth and Income Fund, which at the time would have
amounted to an approximately [sic] $11 million transaction.
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In addition to the AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, ﬂ}p article stated tlﬁt defendant Malone
also managed two technology hedge funds,‘ the ACM Technology Hedge Fund and the ACM
Technology Partners LLP.

The Prospectuses, Including the AllianceBernstein Technology Fund
and the AllianceBernstein All-Asia Investment Fund Prospectuses,
Were Materially False and Misleading '

46. Plaintiff and egch member of the Class wefe entitled to, and did receive, one of
the Prospectuses, each of which contained substantiélly the séme materially false and misleading
stateménté regarding the AllianceBem‘stein'Funds’ poliqies on late trading and timed trading, and
acquired shares pursuant to one or more of the»?’rospecmées. _ v

. 47. The Prospectuses contained materially false and misleading statements with
_;espect to how shares are priced, typically representing‘ as folloWs: |
 How the Funds Value Their Shares

The Funds’ net asset value or NAV is calculated at 4 p.m., Eastern
time, each day the Exchange is open for business. ' To calculate
NAV, a Fund’s assets are valued and totaled, liabilities are
subtracted, and the balance, called net assets, is divided by the
number of shares outstanding. The Funds value their securities at
their current market value determined on the basis of market
quotations, or, if such quotations are not readily available, such

"other methods as the Funds® directors believe accurately reflect fair
market value.

4_8. - The Prospectuses, in explaining how orders are pfoceséed, tsfpically represented
that orders received before the end of a business day will receive that day’s net asset value per.
share, while ordérs‘received after close will receive the next business day’s price, as follows:

Your order for purchase, sale! or exchénge of shar'e's.is priced at the

next NAV calculated after your order is received in proper form by
- the Fund. Your purchase of Fund shares may be subject to an
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initial sales charge Sales of Fund shares may be subject to a
contingent deferred sales charge or CDSC.

* % %

HOW TO EXCHANGE SHARES

You may exchange your Fund shares for shares of the same class
of other Alliance Mutual Funds (including AFD Exchange
Reserves, a money market fund managed by Alliance). Exchanges
of shares are made at the next determined NAV, without sales or
service charges. You may request an exchange by mail or
telephone. You must call by 4:00 p.m., Eastern time, to receive
that day’s NAV. The Funds may modify, restrict, or terminate the
exchange service on 60 days’ written notice.

HOW TO SELL SHARES

You may “redeem” your shares (i.e., sell your shares to a Fund) on
any day the Exchange is open, either directly or through your
financial intermediary. Your sales price will be the next--

“determined NAYV, less any applicable CDSC, after the Fund
receives your sales request in proper form. Normally, proceeds
will be sent to you within 7 days. If you recently purchased your
shares by check or electronic funds transfer, your redemption
payment may be delayed untii the Fund is reasonably satisfied that
the check or electronic funds transfer has been collected (which
may take up to 15 days). ‘

'49.  The Prospectuses falsely stated that Alliance Capital Managemeht actively
safegua:ds shareholders from the harmful effects of timing. For example, in language that
typically appeared in the Prospectuses, the March 3 1, 2003 AllianceBernstein Technology Fund
Prospectus and the AllianceBernstein All-Asia Invesﬁnent Fund Piospecms stated as follows:

A Fund may refuse any order to purchase shares. In particular, the
Funds reserve the right to restrict purchases of shares (including
through exchanges) when they appear to evidence & pattern of

frequent purchases and sales made in response to short-term
considerations. In an effort to discourage frequent trading, mutual
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funds may impose a redemption fee if shates are sold or exchanged
within a prescribed time. :

50.  The Prospectuses failed to disclose and misrepresented the following méterial and
adverse facts which damaged plaintiff and the other members of the Class: |
| | (a) * that defendants had entefed into an agreement allowing ‘thé Canary
| Defendants and the John Doe Defendants .to time their trading of the AllianceBemnstein Funds
shar'es‘ and to “Jate trade™; |
) that, pursuant to tﬁat agreement, Capary and other favored investors
fegularly vtimed and late-traded they AllianceBernstein Funds shares;
| () that, contrary to the expfcss tépreséntations in the Prospectuses, the
AllianceBernstein Funds‘enfo_rced their policy against frequent traders selectively, i.e., they did
not enforce it against the Canary’Defendants and the John Doe Defendants and they waived the
redemption fees that these defendants should have been required to pay pursuant to stated
AllianceBernstein Funds policies; |
(d)  that the Fund Defendants regularly allowed Canary and other favoreci
investors to éngége in trades that were disruptivé to the efficient management of the
_AllianceBémstein Funds and/or increased the AllianceBernstein Funds’ costs and thereby
reduced the AllianéeBemstein Funds’ actual performance; and
(e)‘ that the arnéunt of conipenéation paid by the A]lianceBemstgin Funds to
~ Alliance .Capital Managemént, because of the AllianceBernstein Funds’ secret agreement thh

Canary and others, provided substantial additional undisclosed compénsation to Alliance Capital

20




Management by the AllianceBernstein Funds and their respective shareholders, including

plaintiff and other members of the Class.

Defendants’ Scheme and Fraudulent Course of Business

5.  Each defendant is liable for @ making‘ false statements, or for failing to disclose
materially adverse facts in vcorlmec‘tion‘ with the purchase or sale of shares of the
AllianceBernstein F und,s,‘ or otherwise, and/or (ii) parﬁcipating ina scheme; to defraud and/or a
courée of business that operated as a fraud or decejt on purchasers of the AllianceBernstein
Funds shares during the Class Period (the “Wrongful Conduct™). " Thjs Wrbngful Conduct

enabled defendants to profit at the exj)ense of plaintiff and the other Class members.

~ Additional Scienter Allegaﬁons |
52.  As alleged herein, defendants acted wnh scienter in that defendants knew that the

public docﬁments and statements issued or disseminated in ihe name.of the AllianceBernstein

-Funds were materially false and misle‘a.ding;’ knew that. such statements or documents would be
issued or disseminated to the investing vpublic; and knowingly and substantially participated or
acquiesced in the issuancé or dissé_mination of such statements or documents as primary
violations of the federal securities laws. Defendants, by virtue of their receipt of information
reflecting the true facts regarding AllianceBernstein Funds, their control aver, and/or receipt
md/o;"modiﬁcation of Alliancéchstein Fuﬁds’ allegedly materially misleading misstatements -
and/or their associations with the. AllianceBernstein Funds which made them privy to
confidential proprietary information concerﬂing the AllianceBemstein’Funds', participated in the

fraudulent scheme alleged herein.
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53. | 'Addi{ionally, the Fund Defendants and the Fund Individual Defendants weré
highly moﬁvated t(v)‘ allow and facilitate the wrongful coriduct alleged‘ herein and participated in
‘and/or had actual knowledge of the frauduleﬁt conduct alleged herein. In exchange for allowing
the unlawful praéﬁqes alleged herein, the‘Fund Defendants and Fund Individual Defendants
received, among other things, increased rdanagcment feeé from “‘_sticky asseﬁ” and other hiddep
' compensation paid in the foﬁn of inflated interest payments on loans. to the Canary and John Doe
Defendants. |
‘ 54 The Canary Defendants and John Doe Defendants were motivated to participate in
the wrongful scheme_ by the enormous px;oﬁté tﬁey derived thereby. Thgy sysfematically pursued
the scheme with full knowledge ofits conseqﬁences to other investors.
VIOLATIOI‘{S OF THE SECURITIES ACT

FIRST CLAIM

Against The AllianceBernstein Registrants For Violations
of Section 11 Of The Securities Act

55.  Plaintiff repeats and realléges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
. se_i forth herein, cxcept ‘that, for purposcs.of this claim, plaiﬁtiff exprcsslf exclude and disclaim
any allegation that could be construed as alleging fraud_or intenﬁo.na.l or reckless misconduct and
oﬂxémﬁse incorporates the ailegations contained 5bbve.
56.  This claim is brought pursuant to Section 11 of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 77k, on behalf of the plaintiff ﬁnd other members of the Class against the AllianceBernstein |

Registrants.
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$7.  The AllianpeBemsteinA Registrants are the registrants for the fund shéres sold to
plaintiff and the other members of ﬁw Class And are statutorily liable under Section 11. . The
AllianceBernstein Registrants issued, caused to be issued and participated in the issuance of the
materially false and misleading written statements and/or omissions of material facté that were
_.contained in thé Prospectuses. '

58. Plaiﬁﬁff were provided with the AllianceBernstein Technology Fund and/or the |
AllianceBemnstein All-Asia ]hvéstment Fund Prospectﬁses and, similarly, prior tb purchasing

- units of each of the other.AllianceBems‘tein Funds, all Class members likewise received the
' apprdpriafce prospe;tus. Plaintiff and other Class members purchased shareé of the
’AllianceBerx;stein Funds ﬁ)ursuaﬂt or traceable to the relevant false and misleading Prospectuses

* and were damaged thereby. |

59.  As set forth herein, the stétements contained iﬁ _the Prospectuses, when they
became effective, were nﬁaterially false and fnisleéding for a number of reasons, including that
they stated that it was the pfacﬁce of the AllianceBernstein Fuﬁds to monitor and take steps to
.prevex‘n 'timed trading because of its advgrsé effect on fund investors, and that the trading price
was determined as of 4 p.m. each trading da’.y—with respect td all investors wﬁen, 1n fact, C‘anary
and other select investors (the J ofxri Does named as defendants hereiﬁ) were allowed to engage iﬁ
timed trading and late-trade at the previous day’s price. The Pro‘spectuses féiled to dis.close.and
mi‘srepresented, inter alia, the following material and adverse facts: |

@ that defendants had entergd into an unlawful agreement allowing Canary to

time its trading of the AllianceBernstein Funds shares and to “late trade;”
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(b)  that, pursuant to that agreexﬁerit, Canary regﬁlarly timed and late-traded the
AllianceBernstein Funds shares; | | |

(c)  that, contrary to the express representationé in the -Prospectuses; the
AllianceBernstein Funds enforced their policy againsf frequént traders and late trading
selectively, i.e., they did not enforce it aéainst Canary; |

(d)  that the Fund Defendams’regulvarly gllo_wed Canary to engage in trades that
were disruptive to the efficient management of the AllianceBernstein Funds a.hd/_or increased the
AllianceBernstein Funds’ costs and thereby réduced the AIﬁanceBemstein Funds’ actual
performance; and | |

(e)  the P.rospeciuses failed to discloée that, pufsuant to the unlawful
agreements, the Fund Défendants, Canary Defendants and John Doe Defendants benefitted
financially at the expense qf the AlliancéBemstein Funds investors including plaintiff and the
other members of the Class. l |

60. At the time they purchased the AllianceBemstein Funds shares traceablc.to the
defective Pfospecmges, plaintiff and Class merﬁbers were without knowledge of the facts
concerning the false and misleading statements or omission alleged herein and could not
reaSonably have possessed such knowledge. This éla,im was brqught within the applicable
statute of limitations.
SECOND CLAIM
Against Alliance Holding, Allianée Corporation, Alliance Capital Management,

and AXA as Control Persons of The AllianceBernstein Registrants
For Violations of Section 15 of the Securities Act
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61.  Plaintff repeaﬁ and realleges each and every allegatiorvl‘ contained above, ex?:ept
that for purposes of this claim, plaintiff expressly excludes and disclaims any allegaﬁoﬁ that
could be consﬁued as alleging fraud or intentional reckless misconduct and otherwise
incorporates the ailegatiohs contained aBove.

62.  This Claim is brought pursuant to Sectioh 15 of the Securities Act against
Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management, and AXA, each as a
control person of the AllianceBemnstein Registrants, Itis appropﬁate to treat these defendants as
" a gfoup for pleading purposes and to presume that the false, misleading, and incompléte
information conveyed in the AllianceBernstein Funds® public filings, press rele’asés and other 24
publications are the collective actions of Alliﬁnc;e Holding, Alliance Coxporaﬁon, Allianée
" Capital Management, and AXA.

63.  The AlliahceBefnstgin Registrants are liable under Section 11 of the Securities
Act as set forth herein. |

64, Each of Alliance Hold'mg, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management,
and AXA was a “control person” of the AllianceBémstein Regié&ants within the meaning of
Section 15 of the Securities Act by virtue of its position of opeﬁationa] control and/or ownership.
At the tjme plaintiff and other members of the Classpurchased shafes of AllianceBernstein
Funds -- by virtue of their positions of conﬁol and authority over the AllianceBernstein
Registrants -- Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management, and‘A.XA
directly and indirectly, had thg power and authority, and exercise‘d the same, to cause the
AllianceBemstéin Registrants to éngage in the wrongfuIA conduct compiained of herein. Alliance

~ Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Managément, and AXA issued, caused to be

25




issued, ‘and participated in thg issuance of materiél]y false and misleading statements m the
Prospéctﬁses. - |

65. Pmsuant to Section 15 of the Securitigas Act, by TEASON of the foregoing, Alliance
Holding, Allignce Corporation, Alliance Capital Manageméni, énd AXA are liable to plaintiff
and the other members of the Class fof the AJﬁ#ncéBemstcin Registrants’ primary viélaﬁons of
Sectioﬂ 11 of the Securities Act

66. By virtue of the foregoing, plaintiff and the other members of the Class are |
entitled to damages against Allian;e Holding, Alliance quporation, Alliance Capital

Management, and AXA. -

VIOLATIONS OF Iﬂ. E EXCHANGE ACT

'APPLICABILITY OF PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE:
FRAUD-ON-THE-MARKET DOCTRINE

67.  Atall relevant times, the market for AllianceBernstein _Funds was an efficient

market for the following rea:;:ons', among others: |

(a) The AllianceBernstein Funds ‘met the requirements .for listing, and were
listed and actively bought and sold t.hroﬁgh a highly efﬁcient and automated market;

(b) . Asregulated :ntiﬁes, peﬁodic bublic reports qonéeming the
AllianceBerhstéin Funds were regnlarly ﬁled witﬁ the SEC;, :

(©) Pefsohs associated wiﬁh the AllianceBernsfein Funds reguiarly
com;nunicated with public investors via establishevd market wmmmﬁcation mechanisms,

including through regular disseminations of press releases on the national circuits of major
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n_ewswire services and through other‘wide-ranging public disclosures, such a‘s*communications
with the financial press and other, similar reponing services; and

(d The AllianéeBemstéin Funds were ‘follov'ved by several securities analysts
employed by major brokerage firms who wrote reports which were distributed to the sales force
and certain customers of their respective brokerage firms. Each of these rcports‘ was publicly
available and entered the public marketpléce.

68.  Asaresult of the foregoing, the market for the AllianceBernstein Funds promptly

- digested current information regarding AllianceBernstein Funds from all publicly available

soufccs and reflected such i‘n_formaﬁoh in the réspccﬁve AllianceBemstein Funds NAV.
Invesfdrs who purchased or otﬁerwise acquired shares or interests in the AllianceBernstein Funds
rclie(i on the integrity of thé market for such securities. v Under these cir'éumstancés, all
purchasers of the AllianceBe.mstein Funds during the Class Period suffered similar injury
through their purcﬁase or acquisition of AllianceBemstein Funds securities at distorted prices
that did not reﬂect the risks and costs of thé continuing course of conduct allegcd herein, and a
presumption of reliance applies. |

THIRD CLAIM

" Violation Of Section 10(b) Of
The Exchange Act Against And Rule 10b-3
Promulgated Thereunder Against All Defendants

69. Plamtlff repeat and rcallege each and every aJ]eganon contained above as if fully
set forth herein except for Claims brought pursuant to the Securities Act.
70. | During the Class Period, éach of the defendants carried out a plan, scheme and

course of conduct which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period; did decgive the
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investing public, including pléiﬁu'ff and the oth_ef Class igembers, as alleged herein and cause _
plaintiff and other members of the'Clas.s to purchase AllianceBemstein Funds sharés or interests
at distorted prices and otherwisé suffered damages: In furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan
and course of conduct, defendants, and each of them, took the éctjons sét forth ﬁérein.

71. . Defendants (i') employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (ii) made
untrue statefnénts of material fact and/or omiﬁéd to state material facts necessary to make the
staterﬁents not misleading; and (iii) engaged in acts, practices, and a course of business which
operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of the AlliénceBemstgin Funds’ secuﬁties, .
in’cluding p]aintiﬁ and other members of the Class, in an effort to entich themselves through |
undisclosed manipulativg trading tactics By which they v»vrrongfullvy appropriated
AllianceBemstein thds’ assets and otherwise distorted the pricing of their securities in violation
» of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 105—5.' All defendants are sued as primary
participants in the wrongful and illegal c_oﬁduct and scheme éharged herein.

72. Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use, means
or instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a
continuous c‘ourse of conduct to conr;eal adverse material informaftion about me
AllianceBemstein Funds’ operétidns, as specified hérein. |

73. Thése defendants employed devices, schemes and artiﬁées to defraud and a course
éf conducf and scﬁerﬁe as alleged herein to unlawfully maﬁip}ulate‘and profit from secretly timed
and late trading and thereby engaged in tfaﬁsacﬁdns, praéti.ces and a course of business which

- operated as a fraud and deceit hpon plaintiff and members of the Class.
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74. The defendants had actual knowfedgé of the misrepresentations and omissions of

material facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to

ascertain and to disclose such facts, even though such facts were available to them. Such

defendants’ material misrepresentations and/or omissions were done knowingly or recklessly and
for the purpose and effect of concéaling the truth.

75.  Asaresult of the dissemination of the materially false and misleading information
and failure to disclose material facts, as bset forth above, the market price of the AllianceBernstein
Funds securities were distorted during the Class Period such that they did not reflect thé risks and

costs of the continuing course of conduct alleged herein. In ignorance of these facts that market

prices of the shares were distorted, and relying directly or indirectly on the false and misleading

statements made by the Fund Defendants, or upon the integrity of the market in which the
securities trade, and/or on the absence of material adverse information that was knowﬁ toor
recklessly disregarded By defendants but not disclosed in publié statements .by dgfendams during
the Class Period, plaintiff and‘ the other members of the Class acquired the ‘sha;es.or interests in
the AllianceBernstein Funds‘durin‘g the Class Period at distorted prices and were damaged
thereby. |

76. At the time of said misrepresentatioris and omissions, plaiﬁtiff ana other members
.of the Class were ignérant of their falsity, and believed them to be true. Had plainﬁff and the
Other members of the Class and the marketplace known of the truth conbemiﬁg the
AllianceBemstein F un-ds’ dperations, which were not disclosed by defendants, plﬁntiﬁ' and other.

members of the Class WOuld not have purchased or otherwise acquired their shares cr, if they had
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acquired such shares or other interests duﬁng the Class Period, they would not have done so at
the distorted pﬁceé which they paid. |

77. By virtue of the foregoing, defendan'ts' ﬁave violated Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. | |

78. Asa direct and proximate result of »defend}ants’ wrongful ccmducf, plaintiff and the
other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their reSpecti\}e purchases and
sales of the AllianceBermnstein Funds shares durihg the Classteriod.. :

FOURTH CLAIM

Against AXA (as a Control Person of Alliance Corporation); Alliance Corporation
(as a Control Person of Alliance Holding); Alliance Holding (as a Control Person of
Alliance Capital Management); Alliance Capital Management (as a Control Person of
AllianceBernstein Registrants); and AllianceBernstein Registrants (as a Control Person

of the AllianceBernstein Funds ) For Violations of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act

79. Plainﬁff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if ﬁxlly
set forth heréip except for Claims brought pursuant to the Securities Act.

80.  This Claim is brought pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act against AXA
as a control person of Alliance Corporation, Alliance Corporation as a céntrol person of Alliance

Holding, Alliance Holding as a contro] person of the Alliance Capital Management, Alliance

Capital Management as a control person of AllianceBernstein Registrants, and AllianceBernstein

Registrants as a control person of the AllianceBemstein Funds.
81.  Itisappropriate to treat these defendants as a group for pleading purposes and to
presume that the materially false, misleading, and inconiplete information conveyed in the

AllianceBernstein Funds’ public filings, press releases and other publications are the collective
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Qctions of AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding, Alliance Capital Management, and
AllianceBernstein Registrams. ; | | |

82.  Eachof AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding, Alliaﬁce Capital
Management, and AllianceBemstein Regisfrgmts abted as controlling persons of the
AllianceBemnstein Funds within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act for the
reasons alleged herein. By virtue of their operational and management control of the |
AllianceBemnstein Funds’ respective businesses and systemaﬁ¢ involvement in the fraudulent
scheme alleged he;ein, AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding, Alliance Capital
Management, andb AllianceBemnstein Registrants each had the power to influence and control and
did inﬂuencé and contfol, direétly or indireétly, the decision-making and actions of the

AllianceBernstein Funds, including the content and dissemination of the various statements

‘which plaintiff contend are false and misleading. AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding,

Alliance Capital Management, and AllianceBernstein Registrants had the ability to prevent the
issuance of the statements alleged to be false and misleading or cause such statements to be
corrected.

83.  In particular, each of AXA, Alliance Corpofation, Alliance Holding, Alliance

. Capital Management, and AllianceBernstein Registrants had direct and supervisory involvement

in the Operationé of the AllianceBemnstein Funds and, therefore, is presuined to have had the

power to control or influence the particular transactions giving rise to the securities violations as

alleged herein, and exercised the rsa.me.
84.  As set forth above, AXA, Alliance Corpofation, Alliance Holding, Alliance

Capital Management, 'and AlljanceBernstein Registrants each violated Section 10(b) and Rule
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10b-5 by their acts and omissions &s alleged in this Com~plaint} By virtue of ﬂuéir position§ aé
controlling persons, AXA,.Alliaﬁce Corporation, Alli'ange Holding, Alliance Capital
Management, and Allianceﬁemst.ein Régistrants are liable éursuant to Section 20(2) of the
E_xchange Act, As a direct anvd proximate result of defcndants’ wrongful conduct, ﬁlaintiﬂ’ and

other members of the Class suffered damages in comiection with their purchases of

AllianceBernstein Funds securities during the Class Period.

YIOLATIONS OF THE INVESTMENT ADVISERS ACT

AIM

For Violations of Section 206 of The Investment Advisers

Act 0f 1940 Against BACAP [15 U.S.C. § 80b-6 and 15 U.S.C. § 80b-15]

 85.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
set forth herein. » | | | | |
| 86. 'Tbis Count is based ﬁpon Section 215 of the Investment Advisers Act, 15US.C.
§ 80b-15. | |
87.  Alliance Capital Management served as an “investment adviser” to plaintiffs and
other members of the Class pﬁrsuant to the Investment Advisérs Act. |

88.  Asa fiduciary pursuant to the Investment Advisers Act, Alliance Capital

' Management was required to serve plaintiff and other members of the Class in 2 manner in

accordance with the federal fiduciary standards set forth in Section 206 of the Investment
Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C. § 80b-6, gbverning the conduct of iﬂvestment advisers.
89.  During the Class Period, Alliance Capital Management breached its fiduciary

duties owed to plaintiff and the other membérs of the Class by engaging in a deceptive
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contrivance, scheme, practice and course of cdnciuct pursuant to which they knowingly and/or
vreckllessly engaged in acts, transactions, praétices and courses of business which operated as a
fraud upon plamtlﬁ" and other members of the Class. As detailed above, Alliance Capital
Management allowed thé Canary aﬁd John Doe Dcfeﬁdants to secretly engage in late trading and
" timing of the AllianceBernstein Funds shares. The purposes and effect of said scheme, practice
and course of conduct was to enrich BACAP, among other defendants, at the;expvense of plaintiff
and other members of &e Class.
~90. Allian.c¢ Cépital Management breached its. ﬁducia.ry duty owed to plaintiff and the

Clas§ members by engaging in the aforesaid transactions, practices and courses of business
knowingly or recklessly so as to constitute a deceit and‘frau‘d upon plaintiff and the Class
members.

91.  Alliance Capital Management is Hablé as a direct participant in thg wrongs
compiained of herein. Alliance Capital Management, because of its positiqn of authority and
‘control» over the Alli‘anceBemstei‘n Registrants was able to and did: (1) control the content of the
Prospectuses; and (2) céntrol the“ operations of the AllianceBemstein Funds. | |

92.  Alliance Capital Management had a duty to (1) disseminate accﬁrafe and truthful |
information with respect to the AllianceBemstein Funds; and (2) to truthfully and uniformly act
in accordaﬁce.with its stated policies and fiduciary respoﬁsibilities to plaintiff and members of
the Class. Alliance Capxtal Management participated in the wrongdomg complamed of herein in
‘ order to prevent plaintiff and other members of the Class from knowing of Alliance Capital
Management’s breaches of fiduciary duties including: (1) increasing its proﬁtab111ty atp amt;ff’ 8’

and other members of the Class’ expense by allowing Canary and the John Doe Defendants to
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secrctly time and late trade the AllianceBemnstein Funds ahares and (2) placmg its interests ahead
of the interests of plalnnff and other mcmbers of the Class.

93.  Asaresult of Alliance Capital Management’s multiple breaches of its ﬁduciary
duties owed piaintiff and other members of thé Class, plﬁnﬁﬁ and other Cla.ss'members were
damaged..

94.  Plaintiff and other Class,a_xembers are entitlad to rcscind their investment ’advisory»
contracts with Alliance Capital Management and reaover ali fees paid in connearion with their
enroﬂme_nt pursuant to such agreements. | ‘ | |

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for relief and judgmcn;c, as follows:

A. Determining that thia action is a proper class action and appointing plaintiff as
Lead Plaintiff and her counsel as Lead Counsel for the Class and certifying tﬁam as class
representatives under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Proaedare; .

B. -AWafding compensatory &amages in favor of plaintiff and otber Class members .
‘against all defendams,‘ jqinﬂy and seve@ly, for all damageg sus'tained‘as a result of defendants’® . ‘,
‘ wrongdoiag, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon; |

C.: Awarding ;alainﬁff and other members of the Class rescission of their contracfs
with Alliance Capital Management, mcludmg recovery of all fees which would otherwise apply,
and recovery of all fees pa1d to Alliance Capltal Management pursuant to such agreements

-D. Causing the Fund Defendants to account for wrongfully gotten gains, proﬁts and

compensation and to make restitution of same and disgorge them;
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E.  Awarding plaintiff and ﬁe Class their regsonable ;:osts and exbenses incurred in
this action, including counse] fees and expert fecs; and
F. ~ Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
JURY TRIAL DEMANDE‘Q
Plaintiff hereby demands a trial byjury. o |

Dated: October _, 2003
BULL & LIFSHITZ, LLP —_—

By: \%7' = —
- “Peter D. Bull (PB-9118) =
~ Joshua M. Lifshitz (JL-917

18 East 41st Street
New York, NY 10017

© Tel: (212) 213-6222

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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CERTIFICATE OF NAMED PLAWTIFE

I, Regina Kopdown? comify that: .

1, [ have reviewed the complamt and authomzcd its filing or the fling of 8 Moaon
for Lead Plaintiff on my bemlf by Bull & Lifshitz, LLP,

2. [ did not purchase the security that is the subject of this action at the direction of
plaintiff's counsel or in order to participate in any private action arising under this title.

| 3. 1 am willing to serve asa representative party on behalf of a class and will testify

at deposition and trinl, if necessary. '

4. My trmsactions in Alliance Bemstein Funds securities that arc the subjeu of this

litigation during the ¢lass penod set forth in the complaint ace as follows:

Security - | Date of Transaction | Amoust of Sharcs Price Per Share
Stating Whether
Purchased(P) or
Sold(S)

ASPBX ' R XY S 11.135

- 5 I'have not served as or sought to serve as a mprcsantauve party on behalf of a
Class under this title during the last three ycars

6. Ywill not accept aury payment for serving as » representative parly, exeept 1o
reccive my pro rata share of uny recavery or as ordered or approved by the court including the
award to a mpresenggtivc of reasonable cosgs and expenscs (including fost wages) direetly
rclating 1o the reprc§mtaiion of the class.

The foregoing are, to the best of my knowlcdge and belief, true and correct statements,

. Ay

' reoma Kor{/ﬂ,owﬂ/




